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Fewell Geote¢hnica) En?inecring, Ltd,

ATTN: Mr. Richard B, Fewell
President

96-1416 Wathona Place

Pear] City, Mawaii

Dear Sir;

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTIES -
$20,000 (NRC INSPECTION REPORT NOS. 90-01 AND 90-02)

This letter refers to the Nuclesr Regulatory Commission (NRC) inspection
conducted by Inspectors Beth Riedlinger and Robert Pate on October 4, 1990,
and to a followup NRC inspection by Inspector David 0. Skov and Investigator
Philip Joukoff between October 23 and November 8, 1990. The inspections
examined the activities authorized by License No. 53-23288-01 as they relate
to radiation safety and to compliance with NRC regulations and the conditions
of your license,

Both inspections identified numerous failures to com, 'y with NRC requirements,
The October 4, 1990 inspection identified nine apparent violations, dacumented
in Inspection Report 90-01, and sert to you on October 25, 1890, the followsup
NRC inspection included a special field inspection of your 1icensed activities
at temporary radfography job sites on October 23 and 2§ 1990 at Campbel)
Industrial Park, Hawaii. Ouring this follow=up inspect{on, NRC inspectors
identified nine addi.iona) apparent violations, documented in Inspection
Report 90-02, sent to you by letter dated November 16, 1990,

On November 20, 1390, an enforcement conference was held with you to discuss
the violations, their causes, and your corrective actions. At the enforcement
conference, you d° not dispute the inspection findings, and you acknowleiged
the need for fncreased management attention to your radiation safety program.
Quring the conference, ¥0u proposed to implement an independent audit program
to more effectively monitor your licensed operations.

Some of the violations appear to have been willfully conmitted by one of your
radiographers, and represented a significant threat to the health and safety of
the radiographer, helper personnel assisting the ra¢iographer, and members of
the public. Because of the apparent willful violations and NRC's concern for
the hea'th and safety of radiography personnel and the public, an immediately
effective NRC Order %odifywng wicense was issued to you on November 2, 1990,
The Order prohibited your utilization of this employee as a radiographer,
radfographer's assistant or helper in licensed activities for three years. On
October 26, 1990, prior to issuance of the Order, based on a telephone conver-
sation with the N3C, you had voluntarily agreed to temporarily remove the
radiographer from 1icensed activities,
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The violations, which are described in the enclosed Notice of Viglation and
Proposed Ilpos{tion of Civil Penalties, include the radfographer's providing
false information to NRC personne), and failures to: (1) secure the radiographic
source in the shielded position after each source exposure; (2) conduct exposure
device radiation surveys to ensure that the source had been returned to its
shielded position after radio raphic exposures; (3) rope off any portion of the
restricted area boundary, post appropriate radiation warning signs for most of
that boundary, and conspfcuously ost the high radiation area; ?l) conduct
instrument surveys to establish the radiation boundary; (5) prevent entry into
the restricted area of individuals other than radfographers and radtoﬁraphcr's
assistants; (8) Tabe) a shipping container with required "Radioactive category
labels; (73 check a pocket dosimeter for exposure after each radiographic expo-
sure; (8) audit the radiation safety progran once every six months; (9) audit a
radiographer's performance at three mont intervals; (10) check pocket dosimeters
for correct response to raciation: {17) maintain records of survey meter cali-
bration; (12) document pocket dosimeter readings; (13) maintain records of
sealed source physical inventories: (14) maintain a record of an exposure device
storage survey; (15) maintain ro?u{rod utilization logs; and (16) submit to the
NRC a report of occupavional rad ation exposures for°Y969. The large number
and type of violations demonstrate the lack of effective management control of
your radigtion safety program,

The violatfon in Section 1 of the enclosed Notice occurred on October 25 and
Novenber 1. 1990, when your radiographer repeatedly provided false information
t0 NRC personne! concerning his actions guring the operations of October 23 and
25, 1990, The radiographer sta‘ed that he had complied with NRC requirements
sand demonstrated the procedures he purportedly used) for securing the source

n the fully shielded position after each exposure, for conducting surveys to
assure that the source had been retracted to its fully shielded pesitfon, and
for preventing the entry of unauthorized personnel into the restricted area,
when in fact the radiographer had not compiied with these requirements.

Licensees must be accurate and forthright in providing information to the NRC
if the NRC is to ensure that licensed materials do not endanger pubiic health
and safety. This is particularly important in radio?rapny. n which licensee
personne! work at sites where operations are difficult to monitor but have the
potential to harm unwary bystanders as well as radiography personnel. Licensee
managers and the NRC must be able to trust licensee employees when they report
they have complied with requirements designed to protect the public health and
safety. Thus licensees must insist that their employees be scru ulousig
accurate in comp?eting required records and in communicating with the NRC.
Therefore, based on the willfulness of this violation and on the number of
examples, and in accordance with the Enforcement Policy, the violation in
Section [ has been classified as a Severity Level Il violation.

The numerous violations in Section Il of the enclosed Notice demonstrate a
significant lack of adequate management attention to, and oversight of, your
licensed activities. The radiographer employee who was responsible for certain
of the viclations during fie'd radiography on October 23 and 25, 1990, signifi-
cantly degraded radiation safety and directly threatened public health and safety,
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including his own, Moreover, as noted above, several of tha violations committed
by the radiographer were wilifyl in that he repeatedly failed to comply with
requirements of which he was wel) aware. However as the licensee, you are in
g.rt responsible for these actions. These vio)atians might have been prevented

ad you addressed the concerns NRC representatives discussed with you 1n an
October 4 1990 meeting (attended by you, your RSO, and the radio rapher). During
that meeting NRC stressed the need for Increased management attention to the
radiation safety program to ensure compliance with Commission requirements. Not-
withstanding this discussion, YOou apparently failed to act to correct this situation,
implicitly signalling to your personne) that they were free to perform Jicensed
activities without fear of management oversight. The most significant violations
occurred folloving the October 4 meeting, Individually, these violations would
be classified at Severity Levels III, IV and V. However taken together, with
the alements of willfulness and lack of management overs! ht, they constitute a
very significant regulatory coricern. Therefare, in accordance with th. "Genera!
Sta nt of Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions" (Enforcement
Pollc¥) 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C (1990), the violations in Section 1 have besn
classififed in the aggregate as a Severity Level I] probiem.

In your letter of December 17, 1990, you indicated that you wil engage an
independent health physics consultant to perform audits of operations and
oversee the program. In addition, you stated that you are reviewing your
operatirg procedures and will submi modified procedures in a request for
license amendment.

To emphasize the importance of complying with license and regulatory

requirements, and of ensuring management oversight of the licensed prograu,

I have been authorized, after consultation with the Director, Office o

Enforcement, and the Deputy Executive Director for Nuclear Materials Saf0t¥.

Sarcguards, and Operations Support, to issue the enclosed Notice of Vielation
roposed Imposition of Civil Penalties (Notice) in the amount of $20,000

for the violations described in Sections I and IT of the enclosed Notice,

The escalation and mitigation factors in the Enforcement Policy were considered.
The base value of a civi) penalty for a Severity Leve! II violation is $8.000.

No adjustment was considered appropriate for the Severity Level II violation in
Section I of the Notice. The base civil penalty for the violations in Section [!
was increased by 50 percent because all of the violations were NRC-identified,
although they could have been discovered by you. The other adjustment factors

in the Policy were considered and no further adjustment to the base civil
penalties is considered appropriate.

You are required to respond to this lette. ~id should follow the fnstructions
specified in the enclosed Notice when preparing your response. In your
response, you should document the specific actions taken and any additiona)
actions you plan to prevent recurrence. In addition, your response should
describe the changes and actions that have been or will be implemented in your
management oversight to ensure that licensed activities are conducted in
accordance with your license and NRC regulatory requirements. After reviewing
your response to this Notice, including your propesed corrective acticns and
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the results of future inspections, the NRC will determine whether further NRC
enforcement action 1s necessary to ensure compliance with MRC regulatory
requirements.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "hules of Practice," a copy of tnis
letter and its enclosure will be placed in the NRC Public Document Room

The responses directed by this letter and the enclosed Notice are not subject to

the clearance procedures of the (Office of Nawagenent and Budget as P.Quired Dy
the Paperwork Reduction Act of ‘860 Pub, L. 96-511

John B, Martin
Regional Administrator

Enclosure:
Notice of Violation and Proposed
Imposition of Civi) Penalties




B/07/1091 00146 NRC REGION U W.C. 415 943 3808 £, 06

NOTICE OiNgIOLATION
PROPOSED IMPOSITION OF CIVIL PENALTIES

Fewe1l Geotechnical Engineering, Ltd. Docket No. 030-30870
Pear] City, Hawai{ ézcggsgggo. £3+23286-01

Quring NRC inspections conducted on October 4, 1990 and from October 23 to
Novoagor 8, 1990, violations of NRC requirements were fdentified. In accordance
with the "General Statement of Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions,"
10 CFR Part 2, Apgondix € (1990), the Nutlear Re ulatory Comission proposes to
impose civil penalties pursuant to Section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954,
as amended (Act), 42 U.S.C. 2282, and 10 CFR 2.205. The particular violations
and associated civil penalties are set forth below:

1. Incomplete and Inaccurate Information

10 CFR 30.S(a) requires, in gnrt. that information provided to the
Co-aiszion by Ticensees shall be complete and accurate in all materia)
respects.

Contrary to the above, when interviewed by NRC personnel on October 25
and November 1, 1990, a licensee radiographer provided false information
to NRC personne) as evidenced by the following examples:

A. By stating that he never allowed any other persons inside the
restricted area while a source was exposed during radiographic
operations on October 23, 1990 at a pipeline aob sfte in Ctm?b|11
Industrial Park (CIP), Hawaii. Contrary to the radiographer's state-
ment, during licensed radiography on October 23, 1990 at the ~IP jab
site, NRC personnel observed the radiographer exposing a 54 curie
iridium=182 source while two helpers and four other non-radiographer
personnel entered the 2 mR/hr bounded restricted area. Although five
of the unauthorized personne! were in direct view of the radiographer,
the radiographer made no effort to prevent entry of the unauthcrized
personnel into the restricted area, or to warn personrel to
imnediately leave the area, or to retract the exposed source.

B. By stating that and by demonstrating how he nad locked the source in
the shielded position of the exposure device between source exposures
during radiography on October 25, 1990 at tre CIP job site, Contrary
to the radiographer's statement and cemonstration, during licensed
radfography on October 25, 1990 at the CIP ,ob site, NRC personne]
observed that the radiographer had repeated’y failed to lock or
secure the sealed source in the shielded position of the exposure
device after returning the source to that position.

C. By stating that and by demonstrating how he had carried a survey meter
and always conducted surveys of the exposure device and source guide
tube during radiography on October 23 and 25, 1990 at the (1P job site.
Contrary to the radiographer's statement, during licensed radiography
on Jcteder 23 and 25, 1990 at the CIP job site, NRC personne) observed
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I

that the radiographer had repeatedly faiied to curry a survo{ meter
and survey the exposure device and guide tube to determine that the
source was returned to fts shicided position inside the exposure
device after each of several source exposures,

These statements were materia) in that they related directly to compliance
with NRC requirements.

This 1s o chcritg bovol IT violation (Supplement VI1).

2ivil Penalty = §

00.

Radiation Safety Violations

A

License Condition 15 ro?uiros in part that the licensee conduct its

program in accordance with the statements, rcgrcsontationo and

procedures included n the application dated October 24 1688
{“tgpljgation“) and letter dated January 13, 1989 (”Appfication
etter"),

1. Section IV, Parnﬂruph 2.5, of the Operatin? and Emergency
Procedures (“0EP"), fncluded with the Application and the
Application Letter, requires licensee personnel to conduct a
survey to establish the 2 mR/hr radiation (restricted area)
boundary at the start of each radiographic operation.

Contrary to the above, at the time of the inspection on
October 25, 1990, a licensee radiographer failed to conduct
radiation surveys to establish the 2 mR/hr restricted area
aoun??ry during radiography at Campbe!l Industrial Park (CIP),
awaii,

2. OEP Section I, Paragraph 5.0, and OEP Section 1V, Paragraph 2.5,
require that only radiographers and assistant radiographers be
permitted inside the 2 mR/hr boundary of the restricted area and
that the licensee maintain surveillance to prevent unauthorized
entry into the radiation area,

Contrary to the above, on October 23, 1990, a licensee
radiographer did not prevent the unauthorized entry of six
non-radiographer personnel into the 2 mR/hr bounded restricted
area during radiographic exposures using a 54 curie iridium-192
source at the CIP jobsite.

3. QEP Section IV, Paragraph 2.6, included with the Application
Letter, requires radiography personnel to check the readings of
their dosimeters immediately after survezing and locking the

exposure device following each radfographic source exposure.

Contrary to the above, during the inspection on October 23 and
25, 1990, a licensee radiographer failed to check the reading of
his dosimeter following each of several radiographic source
exposures at the CIP jobsite,
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10 CFR 34.22(a) requires,in part, that during radfographic operations,
the sealed source acsembly be secured in the shielded posftion each
time the source is returned tu that position,

Contrary to the above, on October 25, 1990, a licensee radiographer
gid not secure the sealed source assembly in the shielded position
of the exposure davice after returning the source to that position
on four occasions during radiography at the CIP fobsite.

10 CFR 34.43(b) requires the licensee to ensure that a survey with a
calibrated and operable radiation survey instrument is made after
each radfographic exposure to determine that the sealed source has
been returned to its shielded position. The survey must include the
entire circumference of the radiographic exposure device and any
source guide tube.

Contrary to the above, on October 23 and 25, 1990, a licensee
radiographer did not conduct radiation surveys after each of several
rediographic source exposures to determine that the source had been
returned to its shielded position inside the exposure device during
radiography at the CIP jobsite.

10 CFR 34.42 requires, with exceptions not here applicable, that
licenseas conspicuousiy post areas in which they are porforming
radfography with "Caution Radiation Area" and "Caution High Radiation
Area" signs, as required by 10 CFR 20.203(b) and (e)(1).

License Condition 15 requires,in part, that the 1icensee conduct its
program in accordance with the statements, representations, and
procedures included with the ipplication and the Application Letter,

OEP Section IV, Paragraph 2.2, included with the Application and the
Applicatfon Letter, requires the licensee to establish the boundary
of the restricted area with ropes and radiation area signs,

Contrary to the above, on October 23 and 25, 1990, the licensee failed
to post "Caution Radiation Area" signs at most of the restricted area
boundary, and failed to rope off any portion of that boundary during
radiography at the CIP jobsite. Also contrary to the above, the
licensee did not conspicuousl{ post "Caution High Radiation Area"
signs in that thes2 signs could not be read by persons entering the
high radiatfon area from all directions.

License Condition 16 authcrizes the licensee to transport licensed
material in accordance with the provisions of 10 CFR Part 71
"Packaging and Transportation of Radfoactive Material". 10 CFR
71.5(a) requires each licensee who transports )icensed material
outside of the confines of its plant or other place of use to comply
with the applicable requirements of 49 CFR Parts 170 through 189,



Ue/007 193 B4y L REULAY ¥ W Wav S AN L UD

' Notice of Vielation -4 -

49 CFR 172,403 requires appropriate "Radfoactive" category labels
that fdentify the |ct1v1t{ and radioactive contents of packages
containing radioactive material. Determination of the proper labe)
1s based on the radiation dose rates at the surfece and at one meter
(transport index) fros the psckage

Contrary to the above, on October 25, 1990, a radiographic exposure
dovico.contain1ng & 54 curfe iridium=192 sealed source was transoorted
by & Ticensee radiographer to the CIP jobsite without any "Radioactive"
category labels.

F. License Condftion 15 requires in part that the licensee conduct ts
program in accordance with the statements, rogrosontut1ons and
procedures included in the application dated ctober 24 1688
{“:gpl’gation“) and Tetter dated January 13, 1989 ("Appfication

etter”),

Paragraph 2.2 of the "Safety Program", included with the Application
and the Application Letter, requires an audit of the radiation safety
program once every six months.

Contrary to the above, as of October 25, 1990, the licensee had not
conducted audits of the radiation safety program since fssuance of
the license on January 26, 1989,

G. 10 CFR 34,11(d){1) requires the licensee to have an inspection program
that requires observations of the performarce of each radiographer and
radfographer's assistant during an actual radiographic operation at
intervals not to exceed three months.

Licanse Condition 15 incorporates in License No. 53-23288-01 the
inspection program satisfyin? the requirements of 10 CFR 34.11(d)(1),
as submitted in the Application and Appiication Letter.

Paragraph 2.1 of the "Safety Program," fncluded with the Application
and Application Letter, requires the licensee to conduct audits of
each radiographer at least once each calendar quarter and not to
exceed three months.

Contrary to the above, the licensee had not audited the performance of
an individual raciographer conducting radiographic operations between
February 10, 1990 and June 1, 1890, an interval exceeding three months,

H. 10 CFR 34.33(c) requires that pocket dosimeters be checked by the
licensee at intervals not to exceed one year for correct response to
radiation,

Contrary to the above, from August 16, 1989 to Cctober 4, 1990, an
interval exceeding one year, pocket dosimeters ware not checked for
correct response to radiation.
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10 CFR 34,24 requires in part the calibration of euch survey
instrument used to conduct physical radiation surveys required by
10 CFR Parts 20 and 34 and requires a recerd 1o be maintained of the
date and results of each calibration for three years after the date
of calibration,

Contrary to the above, as of October 4, 1990, the licensee fafled to
maintain & record showing the date and resulls of calibration of the
survey instrument that was used for conducting radfation surveys
during radfography on Apri) 4-10, 1990,

10 CFR 36.33$b) requires that pocket dosimeters be read and exposures
recorded daily.

Contrary te the above, on July 16, 1990 and on August 27, 1990, a
licensee radiographer did not record his pocket dosimeter readings.

10 CFR 34.26 requires, in part, that the licensee maintain, for three
years, records of guarterly physical inventories that include the
Ouant{tios and kinds of byproduct material, location of sealed sources,
and the date of the inventory,

Contrary to the above, at the time of the inspection on October 4,

1990, the licensee had not maintained records of sealed source

8hys¢§;l ig;antorios that were conducted on February 9, 1990 and
une 27, :

10 CFR 34.43(d) requires the licensee to ensure that a record af the
storage survey required by 10 CFR 34,43(c) is retained for three years
when that storage survey s the last one performed in the work day.

Contrarx to the above, at the time of the inspection on October 4,
1990, the licensee had not retained records of the last storage
survey of the radiographic exposure device following radiography on
August 27, 1990.

10 CFR 34,27 requires, in part, that each licensee maintain current
utilization logs, which shall be kept available for three years from
the date of the recorded events, for inspection by the Commission, at
the address specified in the license, showing for each sealed source:
the make and model number of the radiographic exposure device or
storage container in which the sealed source 's located; the identity
of the radiographer to whom assigned; and the plant or site where
used and dates of use.
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Contrary to the above, as of October 4, 1990, the licenses did not
maintain required utilization logs in Pear) fity. Newail, of changes
of sealed sources in exposure devices occurring on spproximately
March 14, 1990 and August 29, 1990

10 CFR 20.407(b), with exceptions not here applicable, requires
Ticensees to submit to the Commission, within the first quarter of
each calendar year, a report of exposures recorded for individuals
under & licensed program for the preceding calendar year

Contrary to the above, as of October 4, 1990, the 1icenses had not
submitted the required report for calendar year 1989.

This is a Severit{ Level 1] problem (Supplements IV, V, and Vlz :
olations

Cumuiative Civi) Penaity = $12 000 (assessed $1,350 each for V

Al , A2, A3 ,8.,C,0,F., andG.; $500 for Violation € , and
$100 each for Violations W.,'1.,'J., k.. L., M., and N.)

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Fewe!l Geotechnica) Engi.eering,
Ltd, (Licensee) 15 hereby required to submit a written statement or explanation
to the Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
within 30 days of the date of this Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition
of Civil Penalties (Notice)., This reply should be clearly marked as & "Reply
to & Notice of violation" and should include for each a)leged violation: (1)
admission or denial of the alleged violation, (2) tne reasons for the violation
if agmitted, and 1f denied, the reasons why, (3) the corrective steps that have
been taken and the results achieved, (4) the corrective steps that will be
taken to avoid further violations, and (5) the date when ful) compliance wil)
be achieved. If ar adequate reply fs rot recefved within the time specified in
this Notice, an order may be {ssued to show cause why the license should not be
modified, suspended, or revoked or why such other action as may be proper should
not be taken. Consideration may be given to extending the response time for
good cause shown. Under the authority of Section 182 of the Act, 42 U.S.C

232, this response sha)l) be submitted under oath or affirmstion

Within the same time as provided for the response required above under 10 CFR
2.201, the Licensee may pay the civi) penalties by letter to the Director,
Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, with a check, draft,
Or money order payable to the Treasurer of the United States in the cumulative
amount of the civil penalties, or may protest imposition of the civi) penalties
in whole or in part, by & written answer sddressed to the Director, Office of
Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Should the Licensee fai) to
answer within the time specified, an order imposing the civil penalties will be
1ssued. Should the Licensee elect to file an answer in accordance with 10 CFR
2.205 protesting the civil penalties in whole or in part, such answer should be
clearly marked as an “"Answer .0 a Notice of Violation," and may: (1) deny the
violations listed in this Notice in whole or in part, {2) demonstrate extenuat-
ing circumstances, (3) show error in this Motice, or (4) show other reasons why
the penalties should not be imposed. In addition to protesting the civil
penalties in whole or in part, such answer may request remission or mitigation
of the penalties
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In requesting mitigation of the proposed penalties, the factors addressed in
Section V.B of 10 CFR Part 2, kppendix C (1990) should be addressed. Any
written answer 1n accordance with 10 CFR 2.205 should be set forth sogaratoly
from the statement or explanation in repl{ pursuant to 10 CFR 2,201, but may
incorporate parts of the 10 CFR 2.201 rep { by specific reference (e.g., citing
Page and paragraph numbers) to avoid repetition The attention of the [icensee
1 directed to the other provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, regarding the procedure
for imposing civi) penalties,

Jpon faflure to pay any civil penalties due which subsequently has been
determined in accordance with the applicable provisions of 10 CFR 2.205, this
matter may be referred to the Attorney General, and the penalties, unless
compromised, remitted, or mitigated ma; be collected by civil action pursuant
to Section 234c of the Act, 42 0.S.0, 2383,

The response noted above (Re ly to Notice of Violation, Tetter with payment of
civil penalties, and Answer to a Notice of Violatfon) should be addressed to:
Oirector, Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commissfon, ATTN:
Document Contro] Desk, Washington, DC 20555 with a copy to he Reglonal

dminfstrator, U.S. Nuclear Rogulatory Comn{ssion. Region V, 1450 Maria Lane,
Walnut Creek, California, 94536,

OR THY NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

/fﬁ(%

. Martin
Regional Administrator

Dated at Walnut Creek, Californ.a
il ;7 day of February 1991
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Board Notification 91-03 dated February 7, 1991:

Service List

J. Taylor, EDO

H. Thompson, DEDS
R, Bernero, NMSS
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R. Cunningham, NMSS
G. Sjobiom, NMSS
W. Parler, 0GC

L. Chandler, 0GC
J. Martin, RV
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